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Q1: Where does the 5% of (freight) revenue payment go?  Does it go to the General Fund or a 
special fund? 

A1: The revenue paid to the State under contract, 5% for gross freight revenue and 10% for gross 
passenger revenue, is placed in NHDOT’s “Special Railroad Fund”, which funds maintenance 
and repair of state-owned railroad lines.   

  
 
Q2: Is the Maine Rail Study of the Mountain Division Line available to review? 
A2: The 2007 Maine Mountain Division Rail Study, including the Executive Summary and A Report 

on Potential Uses and Implementation Costs Full Report, are available as downloadable PDF 
documents on the Maine DOT’s Office of Freight and Business Services website 
(http://www.maine.gov/mdot/ofbs/) under the Freight Studies listing. 

 
  
Q3: Are the bridges on the Mountain Division Line rated for 286K traffic? 
A3: Most of the bridges meet or exceed the 286K loading at 20 MPH, but approximately 15 bridges 

do not.  The number of non-286K bridges increases significantly at a speed of 40 MPH.  The 
bridge ratings and calculations are available for review at the NHDOT Bureau of Rail & Transit’s 
office.  

 
 
Q4: Why is an RFP being issued now?  Is the State trying to get more rail business on the lines, 

or were business's requesting rail service? 
A4: Over the last few years there have been several inquiries to the Department about the ability to 

utilize these state-owned railroad lines for additional railroad operations.  The Department chose 
to issue this RFP in order to allow private sector railroad operators to propose service that could 
enhance rail service in the state and utilize existing state-owned railroad corridors. 

 
Q5: Would the Railroad Corporation operating on the state- owned lines have to pay the State 

Railroad Tax? 
A5: Yes, the Railroad operating on the state-owned line would have to pay the State Railroad Tax in 

accordance with NH RSA 82.  In addition to information contained in the RSA, NH Railroad Tax 
forms can be found on the NH Department of Revenue Administration’s website 
(http://www.revenue.nh.gov/forms/railroad.htm).   
  

 
Q6: Why didn’t the RFP include the segment between Whitefield and Groveton, NH (Groveton 

Branch)? 
A6: The Groveton Branch was not included in the RFP because there is already a railroad operator 

(New Hampshire Central Railroad – NHCR) that provides freight service on the entire line.  
Anyone desiring freight service on the line can obtain it from NHCR.  The Conway Branch has 
no operators on the State-owned portion and the Mountain Division Line has sections that do not 
have a railroad operator. 
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Q7: Why didn’t the RFP include the segment between Whitefield and Littleton, NH? 
A7: The Department has been working with the NH Department of Resources and Economic 

Development and the Town of Littleton for over two years to file with the Surface Transportation 
Board (STB) for abandonment and discontinuance of a 6.86 mile segment between Littleton and 
Bethlehem, NH.  The railroad operator, NH Central Railroad, filed a Discontinuance of Service 
Exemption, which became effective on June 30, 2015, and final documentation is being prepared 
for the State to file an Abandonment Exemption with the STB.  This 6.86 mile section has not 
had service on the line since the 1990s.   

 
 
Q8: Do you have a map of the area around Hazens (in Whitefield)? 
A8: For the purpose of this RFP, a detailed map of the Hazens area has not been developed. 
 
 
Q9: What is the status of the Twin State operating lease on the line between Whitefield and 

Lunenburg/Gilman, VT? 
A9: Twin State Railroad Corporation’s agreement currently terminates on December 31, 2018; 

however Twin State has the ability to exercise the agreement for an additional 10-year period, 
which would terminate on December 31, 2028. 

 
 
  
 
 


